
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE 

Board of Selectmen Agenda 
November 21, 2023, @ 9:00 AM 

TOWN HALL 
6 Elm Street 

This is an in-person meeting. 

1. Call to Order.

2. Approve the November 9, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes.

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

4. Consider the extension liquor license submitted by Kennebunkport Inn LLC,
located at 1 Dock Sq.

5. Approve the November 21, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant.

6. Adjournment.



Town of Kennebunkport 
Board of Selectmen Meeting 

November 9, 2023 @ 6:00 PM 
Village Fire Station (32 North Street) 

MINUTES 

Selectmen attending in person: Allen Daggett, Sheila Matthews-Bull, Jon Dykstra 

Selectmen attending via Zoom: Mike Weston. 

1. Call To Order.

Allan Daggett, Vice Chairman, called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. He conducted
the meeting as he was in person, and Chairman Weston was attending via Zoom.
Selectman Gilbert was not present.

2. NOT ON THE AGENDA ANYMORE: Executive Session per (MRSA 1, §405-6E) for
consultation with the Town attorney to discuss the legal rights and duties for
pending or contemplated litigation.

3. 6:00 PM - Approve the October 26, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes.

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to approve the
October 26, 2023, meeting minutes. Voted: 3-0-1. (Selectman Matthews-Bull abstained
as she was not present for the previous meeting). Motion passed.

4. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board
of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

Tracey O’Roak, Town Clerk, read the results of Tuesday’s election.

For the special town meeting:

Question 1 (Comp Plan Updates): Yes – 1,226 No – 331
Question 2 (Street Opening Ordinance): Yes – 1,361 No – 229
Question 3 (New Town Hall): Yes – 758 No – 886
Question 4 (Sale of School Street Property): Yes – 825 No – 800
Question 5 (Cape Porpoise Pier Funding): Yes – 1,478 No – 153
Question 6 (Easement-Green Marine): Yes – 1,385 No – 207
Question 7 (Accept Cape Porpoise Fire Station): Yes – 1,549 No – 82

Item 2



November 9, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 5 

For the State election, the results of the town voters were: 

Question 1 (Citizen Initiative): Passed 
Question 2 (Citizen Initiative): Passed 
Question 3 (Citizen Initiative): Did not pass 
Question 4 (Citizen Initiative): Passed 
Question 5 (Constitutional Amendment): Passed 
Question 6 (Constitutional Amendment): Passed 
Question 7 (Constitutional Amendment): Did not pass 
Question 8 (Constitutional Amendment): Did not pass 

Tracey also shared some news about the Boston Post Cane, which is given each year 
to the oldest resident of our Town who is at least ninety years old and has lived in 
Kennebunkport full-time for at least twenty years. Lillian Bartlett, who is 98 years old 
and lives on Towne Street, will receive the cane this year. There will be a presentation 
ceremony during Thanksgiving week. 

Tracey also expressed the Town employees’ appreciation to Yanina Nickless for all her 
efforts as Interim Town Manager while Laurie Smith was away. 

Allan Daggett told everyone that the Selectmen heard the voice of the voters in not 
approving the new town hall plan, stating that the board would take community feedback 
and recommendations to come up with an alternate plan that he hopes will be 
acceptable to all to put on the June 2024 ballot. 

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken. 

5. Shellfish License Allocation for 2024.

Selectman Daggett explained that there will be 2 resident commercial, 25 recreational
senior (no cost), 55 recreational resident, 10 non-resident, 3 non-resident senior (no
cost), and 1 recreational (no charge) licenses distributed in 2024. This is the same
license distribution as in 2023.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to accept the
Shellfish Committee’s proposal for 2024 shellfish license allocation. Voted: 4-0. Motion
passed.

6. Consider an ordinance from the Shade Tree Committee.

John Ripton informed the group that the Shade Tree Committee, concerned that there
is no shade tree ordinance in Kennebunkport, had created a draft for one. He feels that
the draft is not yet ready for consideration by the Board, however, and first wants to get
input from the Board, the residents of Kennebunkport, and surrounding communities.
He asked the Board if they had any questions at this time.



November 9, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 
 

Page 3 of 5  
 
 

Mike Weston agreed that a tree ordinance is likely necessary and expressed concern 
about the process of determining a legacy tree on private property. He also would like 
legal review and refinement of tree easements as he is not sure what they entail and is 
concerned about infringement on private property rights. Mr. Ripton concurred and said 
that he wants to get input from communities across the country as to how they set up 
and apply these easements so that the committee can present a fully-fledged ordinance 
proposal. 

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken. 

7. Parks and Recreation Master Plan presentation. 

Stephanie Simpson, Parks and Recreation Department Director, introduced Jessica 
Kimball, Landscape Architect with Viewshed, who has been working on a Master Plan 
since October 2022. 

Ms. Kimball informed the Board that public engagement was accomplished by posting 
a public interactive website detailing current facilities, a community survey answered by 
430 people, meetings with stakeholders, and a public meeting at the Parks & Recreation 
building in April 2023. The Plan is intended to provide a 10-year guideline for the 
improvement and maintenance of four parks owned by the Town. Those parks and their 
suggested improvements are: 

Firefighter’s Park – Move the T-ball field to Parson’s field, have a central lawn, a marsh-
side lawn with plantings, a nature trail, and an expanded playground featuring the 
current beloved fire truck play structure. Recommendations were made for dealing with 
the mosquitoes. 

Parson’s Field – Resolve the current drainage problem, replace the existing chain link 
fence with a new fence, add an ADA walking path around the perimeter, add shade sails 
at the playground, and add formalized parking on the far side of the field near the 
existing softball and proposed T-ball fields. 

Rotary Park at Beachwood – Re-stripe existing tennis courts to allow six pickleball 
courts instead of the current four, or possibly make the court surface larger to allow 
eight pickleball courts. Add shade structures, expand the playground with more age-
inclusive features for younger children, and add a fence as a protective barrier between 
the play space and Beachwood Avenue. 

Silas Perkins Park – The property is deed-restricted to remain a green space without 
building any structures. There is access to the Kennebunk River via granite steps, so a 
recommendation is to add parking at the side of the street for vehicles dropping off or 
picking up kayaks. Also, move the crosswalk to the end at the entrance of the park 
instead of its current location in front of the pump station. 



November 9, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 
 

Page 4 of 5  
 
 

Implementation of the plan would consist of accepting the plan, staff support, 
prioritization of improvements, and funding. Jessica provided a grid of the four parks, 
high, medium, and low implementation priorities for each, and a cost estimate for each. 

Chairman Weston commented that parking at Parson’s Field would need to be 
considered if moving the T-ball field there, as there are lots of field sports happening 
there already. 

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken. 

8. Pier Causeway project update. 

Eric Labelle, Project Engineer, informed the Board that Sargeant Corporation was 
awarded the project and is working on block design. The blocks should be delivered in 
early 2024, and permitting requires that they be in place in the wet areas (below sea 
level) by April 2024. Preliminary paving will be done in May of 2024, with the final surface 
layer put down a year later in May 2025. Eric expects that traffic will be allowed 
throughout the project, but there may be flaggers or signals at times. 

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken. 

9. Adoption of the budget development schedule from July 2024 through June 2025. 

Yanina Nickless, Interim Town Manager, informed the board that she developed the 
schedule with Nicole Evangelista, Finance Director, and that the schedule will look the 
same as in previous years. She noted one change – the meeting that was scheduled 
for February 29th (2024 is a leap year) will be moved to March 7th. 

Motion by Selectman Mathews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to approve the 
budget development schedule from July 2024 through June 2025. Voted: 4-0. Motion 
passed. 

10. Discussion of the November and December Board of Selectmen meeting dates. 

The Selectmen agreed to hold their next meeting on Tuesday, November 21st at 9 am 
in the Town Manager’s office. They will hold the 2nd December meeting as scheduled 
on December 28th at 6 pm at the Village Fire Station. 

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken. 

11. Accept a $1,600.00 donation from Church on the Cape dedicated towards the 
emergency fuel fund. 

Motion by Selectman Mathews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to accept a 
$1,600.00 donation from Church on the Cape dedicated towards the emergency fuel 
fund. Voted: 4-0. Motion passed. 



November 9, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 5 

12. Accept a $5,000.00 donation from Alisson’s Restaurant dedicated towards the
general needs account.

Motion by Selectman Mathews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to accept a
$5,000.00 donation from Alisson’s Restaurant dedicated towards the general needs
account. Voted: 4-0. Motion passed.

13. Other Business.

Selectman Matthews-Bull informed everyone that the Prelude committee will be putting
up decorations in town this upcoming Sunday & Monday.

Selectman Weston said he likes the Microsoft Surface tablet he was given recently and
that he used it for this meeting. It’s easier to travel with than a big ring binder.

Yanina thanked the board for being so helpful in working with her over the past month
when she was Interim Town Manager. She also thanked the voters for taking the time
to make their choices known. In addition, she announced that we are holding the first
Town Volunteer appreciation event to thank the more than 130 community members
who volunteer their time serving on Town boards and committees.

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken.

14. Approve the November 9, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Mathews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to approve the
November 9, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant. Voted: 4-0. Motion passed.

15. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Mathews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to adjourn.
Voted: 4-0. Motion passed.

The meeting adjourned at 7:01 PM.

Submitted by,  
Dave Powell, 
Technology Specialist 



Item 4














